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Foreword

Scarborough General Hospital is a fitting
monument to the generous efforts of many
splendid people. However, it was the Sisters of
Misericorde, with their inspiration, courage,
skill and leadership, who conceived,

planned, financed and sparked its completion.

Dedicated to serving the sick and the needy,
nothing daunted the Sisters, not even the
tremendous task of converting their 48-bed
hospital on Toronto’s Jarvis Street to a
projected 500-bed institution on isolated
farmland in Scarborough Township.

The necessary departure of the Sisters from
Scarborough in 1972 was a sad event.
Population had grown, and the demand for
hospital services had rocketed, but the number
of sisters available for nursing and
administrative duties had been diminishing.
Partly because of the fact that the story of
the Scarborough General represents a
disappearing era in ecclesiastically-sponsored
hospitilization, and partly because, in its own
right, it is a story of the conquest of inspired
leadership over secular obstacles, this history
has been written.

All those who played a part in the founding
and operation of this outstanding institution
deserve a record of its birth and adolescence,
as well as a relatively permanent
acknowledgement of the role they played.
Having been Chairman of the Board of
St. Mary’s Hospital and then first Chairman
of the Scarborough General, | was happy to
originate and sponsor this chronicle and to
engage Mr. Fergus Cronin as author. The
Sisters and Hospital officials made all necessary
data available to him. His efforts merit our
hearty commendation. It is perhaps timely that
this history should be published on the
20th anniversary of the start of construction.

In particular, I wish to dedicate this volume
to one who, during the turmoil of the original
planning and construction of the Hospital,
became one of my most valued friends —
Sister St. Roseline.

John B. Ridley
February, 1974

Price: $1.00 — all proceeds donated to
the Women’s Auxiliary,
Scarborough General Hospital.
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Preface

It has been a distinct pleasure to me to work on Mr. John Ridley’s history of the
Scarborough General Hospital over the past year and a half, primarily because it
involved close contact with dedicated people whose concern has been the public
good rather than personal gain.

It is always refreshing for one experienced in the news media, after years of
exposure to the venal side of life, to run into true unselfishness. It is especially
reassuring to find it in an endeavour where devotion to the well-being of others is a
prerequisite to the attainment of its reason for existence: giving comfort to the sick
and restoring good health. And, as indicated in the philosophy and objectives of the
Hospital, included herewith in the Addenda, the Sisters of Misericorde pursued
their goal while treating all “with justice and respect for their personal worth and
dignity.”

Since the Scarborough General is still very much a living entity, undergoing in
this year of 1974 yet another expansion, the title of this brief history requires
some explanation. As recounted in the text, the Sisters of Misericorde have played
an important part in the institutional care of the sick and the maimed in many parts
of the world since their formation in 1848. The many changes in society in recent
years, however, particularly the fact that increasingly fewer young girls are joining
religious orders, have seriously affected the ability of the Sisters to continue their
work of mercy. There has also been a steadily increasing demand for hospital
services and a growing role of government in medical schemes and in the financing
of hospitals.

When ownership of the SGH was surrendered in 1972, it not only marked the
end of the Sisters’ responsibilities for hospitalization in Toronto but it exemplified
the present trend in hospitalization throughout the continent. The creation of a new
hospital by a religious community, the growth of the hospital and its eventual
deliverance, in good health, to lay authorities, constitutes a rare drama, unlikely
to take place again. It is therefore the end of an era, as well as an inspiring story
that needs to be told.

Fergus Cronin



Sister St. Roseline (left) and Sister Marie de Liesse, on occasion of farewell tribute, sit
beneath their own portraits and plaque recording their role in giving birth to Scarborough’s
Sfirst hospital in 1956.




Rising from the fields

When David and Mary Thompson arrived in 1796 to become the first settlers of
what is now Scarborough, Ontario, it was a wilderness. A century and a half later,
when the Sisters ol Misericorde arrived to build a hospital at Lawrence Avenue and
McCowan Road, they felt the terrain had not greatly changed.

“All that could be seen was cows and trees,” said Sister Marie de Liesse, the last
of the Order to leave the thriving Scarborough General Hospital in June, 1972 —
an institution they had founded, nurtured, prayed over and largely financed since its
inception in the early 1950s. Now, with their ranks diminishing because of a
changing social structure which tends to divert young girls from a religious vocation,
the Sisters regretfully gave up their hospital in Scarborough as they had already
done in three other Canadian municipalities.

Sister St. Roseline, the hospital’s first administrator and the one who directed
conquest of all the early difficulties, recently recalled some of her first impressions
of the hospital site.

“You could reach it,” she wrote, “given fair weather, by a dusty, rutted track. In
weather not so good, the mud might stop you. When you arrived you would see open
fields, with cattle grazing. And there would be a stillness. For this was the country,
with city noises far away.

“Today a traffic-hustling east-west artery has replaced the country road, and
Scarborough, once a minor township, has become a Borough and an integral part
of the giant, sprawling cosmos of Metropolitan Toronto. Some regret the change,
others applaud it, but all see the need for social services, principal among which
was a community hospital.”

The Scarborough General quickly began to fill the need for medical services. In
early 1959 it was reported at a meeting of the hospital’'s Advisory board that during
the previous year — the third in the hospital’s history — 15,730 patients had received
64,306 days’ care and the secretary of the board volunteered this notation in the
minutes: “It makes one wonder what would have happened if the Sisters of
Misericorde had not had the foresight to build when they did.”

That foresight had come from more than a century of serving humanity. The
Sisters of Misericorde, well named for their concern with mercy, were founded in
Montreal in 1848 with the particular mission of providing comfort and guidance for
unmarried mothers. They still specialized in that work when they arrived in Toronto
in 1914 and set up a home for the purpose. But over the years their interest in social
and medical problems expanded, and the Order established 14 hospitals in Canada,
the United States and Africa.

Humble beginning

Their first location in Toronto was in a school on Bond Street, St. Ignatius Academy,
which belonged to the Toronto Diocese and which the Sisters of Loretto had left
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Air photo taken towards northeast in 1954 shows intersection of Lawrence Avenue
and McCowan Road with hospital construction barely started. Note dramatic contrast
to later air photo when area had become completely built up, except for hydro right-of-way.

vacant. In 1919 they moved to larger quarters on Jarvis Street at Isabella — two
large, old homes which they acquired from the Massey family. One they converted
into a home for unwed mothers, the other they used as their residence.

Gradually the Sisters in Toronto created facilities for obstetrics. This necessitated
having first one then two operating rooms, and the services of a number of surgeons.
Slowly their residence became a small private hospital, and in 1935 the establish-
ment was incorporated as a 30-bed general hospital with the name of St. Mary’s.

The exploding population of Toronto, frequently referred to after World War 11
as “the fastest growing city in North America,” exercised a pressure for still further
growth on the little hospital. In the early 1950s, with now 48 beds at St. Mary’s, the
Sisters began planning a new hospital of 100 to 150 beds. The decision was partly
influenced by the fact that the two old houses which had sheltered women and
children for 33 years had just been condemned by the city as too old for living
quarters.

“I was sent to St. Mary’s in 1951 to prepare for the expansion,” Sister St. Roseline
said in a recent interview. “At first we thought we could rebuild on the same site,
but the property was too small. Also, there were lots of hospitals in the heart of the
city. That was when we started looking around.”

6



A gift for organizing

Sister St. Roseline was a natural organizer. She was born Anna Marie Daoust in
1886 in St. Claire, Quebec, and entered the Sisters of Misericorde in 1906. After
training as a nurse she was sent to various of the Order’s hospitals and was at
Haileybury, Ontario, just before coming to Toronto. For a time she commuted
between the two hospitals.

A senior member of her staff remembers her as being forthright in her approach.
“As soon as she arrived.” he said, “she called a meeting and said, ‘We’re either
going to build, or close down.””

The Sister wrote later: “It was the wish of Mother St. Madeleine de Pazzi, then
Superior General, to maintain our work in the City of Toronto since we had been
directed there by the voice of God . . . we sought financial support to build a
home. It was not a question of a hospital.”

She applied to the City of Toronto for help, but was turned down. “We were told,”
she recounted later, “ ‘My Sister, we have a great respect and much admiration for
your Community, but you have done nothing for the City of Toronto.” We replied,
‘Gentlemen, what we have done for the City of Toronto has not been revealed to you.
It is a discreet service which has been operated in this house. You would be
surprised to know the services which have been performed secretly for the citizens
of the City of Toronto and for others.” Then they told us, ‘Perhaps the City will give
you a grant of $70,000,” — it was not very hopeful.”

One of the first things Sister St. Roseline did after her arrival at St. Mary's was to
build up a good board of directors. “We didn’t have a regular board at the time,”
she said, “and someone told me I should try to get Mr. John B. Ridley. It took me a
whole year, because he was away quite a lot, but I finally got him. He attended all
the meetings, he was elected chairman of both the St. Mary’s board and the one for
the new hospital, and he worked very hard on the fund-raising campaign. It was a
big help to me to have such experienced financial people as Mr. Ridley in the
months and years that followed.”

From her experience in Haileybury the Sister realized the importance of early
discussions with the Ontario Department of Health. Dr. John T. Phair, the Deputy
Minister, was approached by Mr. Ridley, the Sister Superior, Sister St. Eustelle,
and Sister St. Roseline. Dr. Phair was anxious that the Sisters seriously consider
building, not in the centre of Toronto but in the rapidly growing perimeter where
no facilities were available. He specifically mentioned the Township of Scarborough,
having already discussed the dire need with the Reeve of Scarborough, Oliver
Crockford. But there was competition for the Sisters among the suburbs.

At a board meeting in March. 1952, a member, Controller Joseph Cornish, said
he had been advised that the North York Council had a site available and were
anxious to have a hospital. On April 3 he reported further than he had met with the
full North York Council and “although there was a greal deal of enthusiasm shown
by the members, they felt that Scarborough Township was in a much better financial
position to help and enter into such a project at this time.” Some overtures had
also been made by the Township of Etobicoke.

The need for services

Sister St. Roseline had a meeting with Mr. Crockford, the aggressive and far-
sighted Reeve. Mr. Crockford had been responsible for creation of his Township’s
“Golden Mile of Industry.” and now he had turned his attention to the need for a
hospital. The Township had a population of about 70,000 but, with the surrounding
municipalities, a hospital in Scarborough would serve considerably more than
100,000 people who had to travel many miles for hospital attention. Mr. Crockford
promised Sister St. Roseline that, in addition to obtaining financial help from the
senior levels of government, she could count on help from Scarborough — even
though there was no precedent for such a grant.

The Sister took him at his word and did not let him forget it. In May, 1952, for
instance, she wrote to him stating, “While we fully realize that you have constant
solicitude for your district and that you are kept very busy, we still feel that we have
been left in suspense, with no encouragement in action. . . . In many respects it
would appear easier to build on Jarvis Street, though not the most practical, but
since we fully realize that the need of hospital beds is more pressing in your district,
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we should be pleased to carry on the plan in Scarborough. This, however, cannot
be done unless we have financial assistance and also the assurance of the time and
manner in which this assistance will be provided. We do not intend to bear this
project in mind to 1953 without at least bringing it into a progressive stage.” It was
a subtle use of the either-or approach.

Mr. Crockford replied immediately, reassuring the Sister of his Council's con-
tinuing interest. His Township needed a hospital badly. An indication of the growth
Scarborough was going through is the heading for an article that appeared in the
August, 1952, edition of Industrial Canada. 1t read: “In Scarborough Even the
Boom is Booming.” Also, Mr. Crockford was aware of the competition for the
Sisters’ services.

A meeting of Sister St. Roseline, some members of her staff at St. Mary’s
Hospital and of her board, and the full Council of Scarborough Township was held
at the Township offices on Eglinton Avenue. The hospital delivered a report and
made an offer to build in Scarborough with the help of the Township. The report
was taken under study, and eventually accepted.

Early physical problems

In the meantime, a committee headed by Ernest Ridout, a prominent realtor, had
been thoroughly researching the various problems connected with the location of a
hospital. With Mr. Crockford’s help, the committee chose a 25-acre parcel of farm
land which, at Lawrence Avenue East and McCowan Road, was almost the exact
geographical centre of the Township. Although it was far from the centre of the
population distribution, the projected growth pattern indicated that it would become
so, and it did.

The Sisters bought this land in July, 1952, at a price of $1,200 an acre for a total
of $30.000. A year later they received the approval of the Provincial Government
to go ahead with their plans, with the assurance that a grant would be forthcoming.

The biggest and most troublesome problem that faced the Sisters and their
advisory board was one of money. The cost of hospital building in 1953 was about
$4,000 per bed. Sister St. Roseline decided that a hospital of 200 beds was all the
Order could handle. “The doctors and the government laughed at me,” she recalled.
“They said it wasn’t enough. But I said let’s start with this. Well, they were right
because a year and a half after we opened we had to start building again.”

As architect for the hospital the board chose Benjamin Kaminker, whose firm is
now called Govan Kaminker Langley Keenleyside Melick Devonshire Wilson. They
were specialists in building hospitals, and had been architects for the Sick
Children’s, Toronto Western, the original Mount Sinai and Peel Memorial, among
others. Also, the firm was known to the Sisters since it had designed some archi-
tectural changes at St. Mary’s. The contracting was put out to tender and the
Canadian Construction Co. was the lowest of 13 bidders.

Although the Scarborough General was first envisaged as a 200-bed hospital,
provision was made for its ultimate expansion to 500 beds. This meant that service
areas, such as the power plant, kitchen, laundry, etc., were planned with expansion
in mind. There was consequently considerable saving later when the exploding
demand necessitated more beds.

By March, 1954, the initial plans were cut down to 153 beds, and later juggling
with costs made possible 185 beds in the original building (different accounts of the
number of beds at any given stage vary somewhat, depending on what figure is
used to represent the number of bassinets, usually calculated at one bed for 10
bassinets).

The governments had a set policy of granting only $2,000 per bed (half each from
the Province and Ottawa), which left another $2,000-per-bed to raise. A grant {from
the Township was discussed by the Scarborough Council, and it was decided that
since a grant could not be made legally, a question to the voters would be included
in a referendum. It was one of four questions put to the vote on June 23. 1952.
Unfortunately, there had been a lot of adverse publicity in connection with the
other questions, which dealt with creation of a five-ward system, a board of
education to replace area boards and an enlarged public utilities commission. The
people voted ‘no’ to all four, and Mr. Crockford was unable to follow through with
his promise of a $200,000 grant.
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But the Reeve was not defeated. The following year the provincial government
changed the legislation so that such a grant no longer needed specific approval of
the electorate — and Mr. Crockford was more successful.

Fighting the inflation devil

By the time detailed plans had been drawn up, the $4,000 per bed no longer applied;
instead of $760.000. the proposed hospital was to cost $2,200,000. The Sisters
announced they would contribute at least $500,000, they expected a similar amount
from the County and Township, and $380,000 from the provincial and federal
governments. That left about $820,000 to be raised by public subscription. To allow
for the inevitable rise in costs, a round sum of $1,000,000 was chosen as an objective
and a campaign was organized by professional fund raisers in the spring of 1953,

The co-chairmen of the campaign were the hospital board chairman, Mr. Ridley,
who was then vice-president of the financial house of A.E. Ames and Co., and
W. Carl Cannon, president of Frigidaire Products of Canada L.td. — Scarborough’s
largest industry at the time.

At a meeting held in a Scarborough restaurant on April 30, 1953, with about
130 women present, Mr. Ridley outlined the need for the hospital. also the
philosophy behind the work of the Sisters. Mr. Ridley said: “Religion does not enter
into sickness. When a person’s body is broken and in need of repairs, we do not ask

Frederick G. Gardiner, chairman of the Metropolitan Toronto Commission, turns traditional
first sod to start construction in 1954. He is accompanied by some of those prominent in
the fund-raising activities, dressed for the occasion in hospital white.

GENERAL HOSPITAL




what religion he is or what color he is. We treat everybody the same, whether he be
Protestant, Catholic or Jew. white, black or yellow, rich or poor.”

Mr. Ridley pointed out that the new hospital would serve not only the residents
of Scarborough but those living in all the surrounding municipalities, including
Leaside, Agincourt, Markham, Stouffville, Rouge Hill, Dunbarton and Pickering.

The campaign was a success only in the sense of demonstrating that a wide
segment of the public was convinced that a new hospital was necessary. The Rotary
Club, for example, held a fund-raising bingo. The Scarborough Bluffers Association,
consisting of people living near the Scarborough Bluffs, made a donation. A drive-in
restaurant gave a day's revenue. A group of ladies organized “A Brick for the
Hospital” drive. In December three Scarborough children sang carols and raised
$9.50 for the campaign. And the Atkinson Charitable Foundation gave $40.000.

There was good publicity too. A Royal Canadian Navy pilot flew a helicopter
from Montreal and gave three canvassers a ride. Then one of them was lowered ona
winch to canvass a lady working in a potato patch on a farm near the hospital site,
with photographers on hand. A group of builders and subdividers of Scarborough
held a fund-raising dinner at the Guild Inn and turned over $1,550 in cash and
substantial pledges of money and materials.

Financially, however, the campaign was disappointing. Only a third of the
objective was raised. A new campaign was organized with new professional fund
raisers the following vear and got under way in May with the announcement that
$675.000 was still to be raised from business firms and corporations, company
employees, organized groups and individual donors.

The official start took the form of a “mock air raid” staged at the Scarborough
municipal offices to point out the need for the hospital. RCAF planes dropped
smoke bombs on the roof, firemen went through the motions of fighting a blaze, the
St. John Ambulance Corps and the Red Cross demonstrated how the injured would
be cared for, and an ambulance was dispatched from the site of the new hospital,
with siren screaming, arriving at the Township offices on Eglinton Avenue in just
three minutes.

At a three-hour organization meeting, Reeve Crockford said, “We are growing
here at the rate of 25.000 people a year — a good-sized Canadian city entering our
Township every twelve months. The Sisters of Misericorde are taking on a big job
and they deserve every kind of support this fast-growing community can give them.”

At the same meeting, R.E. Sutton, an Agincourt businessman and farmer who
later joined the hospital board, made a pledge to secure at least 100 subscriptions
and pledges of $500 and up. He called it “The Five Hundred Club.” One who joined
the club was a new Canadian, Herbert Heemskerk of Sheppard Avenue who said,
“When each of my three children was born, my wife had to spend some time in a
bed in our over-crowded hospital corridor.”

Disappointment in finding funds

Fund-raising efforts continued to fall short of expectations. A third phase was
organized with Harry E. Wright, long a member of the hospital board, as the new
chairman. It was decided this time not to use professionals.

A car raffle, theatre night and school canvass were held. A chain of gas stations
and a watch-repair store offered a day’s profits. A radio-TV variety show was staged
in the auditorium of Scarborough Collegiate Institute, listeners and viewers being
invited to telephone their pledges.

The campaign still did not get off the ground. In January, 1954, the hospital board
had a third group of fund raisers study what had gone wrong and what should now
be done. The analysis concluded that although the community was in favor of a
hospital in Scarborough in preference to additional facilities outside the Township,
there was a lack of community leadership for a successful campaign. Also, the
report said, there was a lingering opposition to a hospital run by a religious order.
The report recommended, however, that yet another campaign be mounted.

The board carefully considered this recommendation and turned it down. It
decided instead to carry on “a quiet yet forceful approach to finance and industry at
the top level.” This was terminated on Dec. 15, 1954. The total realized by public
subscription to that date stood at $466,296.

The Sisters and board were further troubled by a controversy. The Scarborough
Ministerial Council said it had learned that the new hospital would have a Roman
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Catholic chapel but not a Protestant one. The Council sent to the Ontario Municipal
Board a resolution requesting that “the approval of the Municipal Board be not
given to Scarborough Township Council to make a grant to this hospital until a
public hearing of the application takes place.”

A delegation of I8 ministers attended a meeting of Scarborough Council asking
that funds be withheld unless plans for the hospital be changed to include a
Protestant chapel, and the Township announced that any grant would be held up
pending a joint meeting of representatives of the hospital, Township and Ministerial
Council. Such a meeting was held. The Sisters gave assurance that a minister’s
room would be provided for consulting or for informal Protestant services. Rev.
H.E. Wintemute. president of the Council. subsequently issued a statement to the
news media in which he said the Council recognized the urgent need for the hospital
and that it had been assured the religious needs of Protestants would be looked
after.

In February, 1953, the Scarborough Council passed a special by-law granting
$250,000 to the hospital. The Reeve explained that the question of the grant should
not have been put on the referendum the previous year. “It was only included to
pacify certain obstructionists on Council last year,” he said. “Council did not have
to have public approval for the grant. As far as such grants are concerned, the sky’s
the limit.”

The Ontario Municipal Board sent the Council notice that it had received a
number of letters protesting its action. Then at a Council meeting on March 2,
Reeve Crockford answered the criticism. He said it would have cost the Township
at least two million dollars to build a municipally operated hospital, “and that
would just get it started. We're far better off letting an organization such as these
Sisters operate the hospital and put their money into it. It will give this Township
a hospital without any of the headaches of financing it and operating it.” (The first
stage of the hospital, including a nurses’ residence and Rosalie Hall — a home for
unmarried mothers — actually cost more than $3,000,000 when all the bills were in).

The short-fall in the campaigns meant the Sisters had to raise money from the
bank. Sister St. Roseline remembers signing for a credit of a cool million dollars.
“I went to bed that night and I thought it was terrible for one women to borrow so
much money — of course, | had to do it.” The credit was arranged between the
board chairman, Mr. Ridley, and Horace Enman, then president of the Bank of
Nova Scotia and honorary treasurer of the hospital campaign.

Sister St. Roseline remembers, too. the sensation of near-failure. “At first the
public did not want us.” she said. “They wanted a municipal hospital, and there were
many meetings and a real battle. But Mr. Crockford was on our side, and [ suspect
the good Lord was too. A year after we opened, everybody was in love with us.”

The day the sod was turned

By the time the total requirements had been raised, the official start of construction
had already taken place. On April 7, 1954, a crowd of interested people gathered
on the site for the official turning of the first sod. It was raining and windy and the
ground was mud but. as Sister St. Roseline expressed it later, “In the minds of all
present, it was a bright and glorious day.”

On hand for the ceremony was Frederick G. Gardiner, chairman of the Metro-
politan Toronto Commission, who called the project “one of the milestones of
development of the Metropolitan area.” Leaside Councillor Charles H. Hiscott and
Markham Township Reeve Alfred LeMasurier said that the new hospital would play
an important role in the future growth of their communities.

The Sisters of Misericorde were represented by Rev. Mother Mary de Leus,
second assistant of the General Council; Rev. Mother St. Gertrude, Superior at the
Mother House in Cartierville, Que.; Sister St. Edithe, Superior of Misericordia
Hospital at Haileybury: Sister St. Eustelle, Superior of St. Mary’s Hospital; and
Sister St. Roseline.

Reeve Crockford. an ex-officio member of the hospital board. told the damp
audience, “There have been times of discouragement, frustrations and anxiety. All
has not been smooth sailing. Opposition, difficulties, uncertainties have had to be
met. Every year, every day brought new problems and so it will continue. The
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The hospital as it looked after completion of phase one in 1956. The later tower addition
required construction of a new entrance.

hospital has grown, the municipality has grown, so the responsibility and problems
have grown.”

“You would think.” said Sister St. Roseline recently, “that once we started to
build, our problems would be over. But we just exchanged one set of difficulties
for another.”

Ideals in building

Speed and efficiency were the two ideals pursued by the administrator and her staff
during the construction period. At one time the foreman had to ask the Sisters not
to station themselves in the partially finished building to watch for slow or careless
workmanship because it was interfering with the work.

A businessman later remembered visiting the site with Sister St. Roseline and
sitting with her in a corner on a box to have a cold lunch. “She could have made a
million on Bay Street,” he said. “She certainly knew what she was doing, to the
point where she could walk into an architect’s office, see all the plans spread out and
be able to tell you that a particular room was a foot too short for the equipment she
wanted to put in it.”

An account written later by Mr. Kaminker, the architect, indicated some of the
physical factors that had to be considered:

“A water course, dry most of the time but a raging torrent during Hurricane
Hazel and at other times, cuts diagonally across the lot from Lawrence Avenue to
a crack at the rear of the lot, and the whole site slopes toward this water course and
creek. At the time of construction there were not yet sewers on Lawrence Avenue
and this water course had to be retained and diverted around the power house.
Installation of storm sewers on Lawrence Avenue later made possible the blocking
of this water course.”

Mr. Kaminker recalls that the water course had been diverted just a few days
before the advent of Hurricane Hazel which, with its heavy rainfall, wrought havoc
in different parts of the Toronto area. If it had not been diverted, he said, the
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foundations of the hospital would have been washed out. As it was, the hurricane
left a swampy condition which gave the builders some difficulty.

The hospital was planned with the axis of the nursing wing east and west so as
to permit maximum sunlight into patients’ rooms. Both the main entrance drive and
the ambulance drive were brought in from the main street — Lawrence Avenue — a
fall in grade making it possible to build the goods-receiving entrance, service drive-
way and stafl parking one level lower at the rear of the lot.

Lack of water mains to the site was a handicap, all necessary water having to be
brought in by the barrel or tank-truck. The location was comparatively isolated,
because not all the present roads were finished. It took Mr. Kaminker an hour to
drive there from his downtown office, whereas later he could do it in 25 minutes.
He remembers having to park two or three blocks away because of the muddy
conditions.

But, he says, the site was well chosen. “You couldn’t have picked a better place
for it now. in view of the later development of the area — and in fact, this develop-
ment was in part spurred by the existence of the hospital.”

The Township assured the hospital that the sewers would be completed by the
time construction was finished, and so they were, but the treatment plant was not.
Nevertheless. the hospital was told to go ahead and use the sewers and for several
weeks until the treatment plant was finished, the sewers were used as a reservoir.

Sister St. Roseline was particularly pleased with the architects because they were
always within their budget. Mr. Kaminker recalls how she took an intense and
knowing interest in every detail. She once told him, “If I find anything useful in any
other hospital that we don’t have here, you’ll hear from me.” When the hospital was
later being expanded. the Sister insisted that the wall tiles be laid with less mortar,
requiring more careful work, but resulting in nicer-looking walls.

*“She lived on the project,” said Mr. Kaminker. “This was handy because we
were able to get fast decisions without having to get involved in all the boards,
committees and consultants as we do today.”

SGH doctors are seen using diploscope during brain surgery, a donation from the Women's
Auxiliary and one of many instruments which help the hospital to continue to be modern and
efficient.




The move from St. Mary’s

The move from the old St. Mary’s hospital was completed Jan. 4, 1956. Making the
transfer were Sister St. Eustelle, Superior, Sister St. Roseline, administrator, Sister
Marie Bernard, Sister Marie d’Egypte and Sister St. Gelase. A month later the
occupants of St. Mary’s Home, under the direction of Sister Marie Madeleine, took
possession of their new Rosalie Hall.

The first patient at the hospital was Mrs. Ernest Ridout, wife of the board member.
Ten weeks before the official opening, she had her baby in the new delivery room
— Dennis Ridout, born Feb. 29, 1956. Many thousands of infants were to follow.

On May 12, 1956, Mr. Ridley conducted the ceremony leading to the hospital’s
formal opening by the Ontario Minister of Health, Hon. Dr. Matthew B. Dymond.
The event was preceded by dedication of the chapel by His Eminence James
Cardinal McGuigan. A large number of personages as well as benefactors and
friends were present. His Eminence expressed the wish that the spirit of good will
which had raised the hospital would long abide.

Responsible for organizing a medical staff was the late Dr. Lloyd Bochner, who
was chairman of the St. Mary’s medical board and the first with that title at the new
hospital. Dr. Bochner not only chaired the original medical board but, at the
suggestion of the Advisory Board, sponsored the formation of a local medical
association since none existed in Scarborough Township at the time. After his death
in 1968, Dr. Bochner’s portrait was the first to be unveiled in the SGH lobby.

In October, 1957, Mr. Ridley handed over chairmanship of the Board to Oscar
W. Funk, a local resident. In 1958 the hospital was approved by the Joint Com-
mission on Accreditation of Hospitals — a remarkably short time for such recognition
— and the following year the Canadian Medical Association approved formation of
a Junior Intern training program.

A grand-stand act

One of the difficulties as the new hospital approached completion was the absence
of public transportation and the fact that Lawrence Avenue was little more than a
country road. Grappling with this problem, Sister St. Roseline did two things: she

One of the many expressions of appreciation on the part of patients was this one by well-
known Canadian singer Lois Marshall who was treated in 1966 for a broken hip. She is
seen singing in the hospital chapel.
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called the Toronto Transportation Commission and announced that unless they
provided buses soon, she would just turn the key in the lock and go back to Montreal
and wait for them to act; she also called Oliver Crockford and asked if he could do
anything.

Mr. Crockford had been voted out of the reeveship the previous year, so he was
no longer an ex-officio member of the hospital board, but he had become so
involved in the hospital’s affairs he had agreed to stay on as a regular member. He
now talked to a TTC commissioner who drove out to Scarborough to look at
Lawrence Avenue. then reported back to Mr. Crockford that if the road could be
improved, he would try to get a bus service started. Mr. Crockford then talked to a
Township engineer who told him he still had a little spare money in his budget and
he would fix up the road, but it would take time.

Then Mr. Crockford talked to Alan Reavie, who had been a member of the first
board at St. Mary’s. Mr. Reavie approached the owner of an automobile dealership
on Kennedy Road, who agreed to provide a station wagon and all the gas needed
for a jitney service to the hospital. Mr. Reavie then went to the fire halls and
recruited enough firemen to act as volunteer drivers of the station wagon. So, for
six weeks, seven days a week until Lawrence Avenue was paved and the bus route
was started, there were regular trips made by the station wagon from Eglinton
Avenue and Kennedy Road up to the hospital, carrying nurses and other staff who
did not have their own cars.

“It showed,” said Mr. Crockford, “that the hospital had a high degree of
acceptance by the people of Scarborough.”

The lack of public transportation was more than an inconvenience, Dr. O.B.
Millar, present Chief of Staff, recalls. It was responsible for his difficulty in getting
staff and for a time he was the only radiologist and had just one technician. He
remembers one Sunday when he entered the operating room just after breakfast
and was not able to leave until 9 p.m., having had no food all day.

Personal qualities that helped

The financial history of the Scarborough General either belies the popular notion
that women are not good ‘businessmen’ or it indicates that Sister St. Roseline knew
how to take good advice. In 1956 she issued a bond mortgage in the amount of §1.2
million, maturing in 1969. In 1957 she paid off $100,000 of the principal and the
balance was refinanced. And in 1969 the final $750,000 was paid, leaving the hospital
mortgage-free.

The first expansion was almost paid for by the time it opened in 1961. Then when
the third-phase tower was started in 1966, the Province gave the hospital two loans,
one in the amount of $1.825,000 at 3 per cent for 30 years, the other a “forgiveable
loan™ of $1.5 million, which is looked after by the Province itself. On the first loan,
the hospital pays $92.000 a year — its only debt.

A financial man associated with the hospital expressed this opinion: “The
Scarborough General is one of the best hospitals in Ontario because of its good
financial management. Its performance is truly remarkable, and all credit is due to
the Sisters for this, especially to Sister Marie de Liesse who put a lot of confidence
in her staff, and made sure they knew it. That's why she developed such a good
show here. That’s why the hospital has just about the best group of department
heads you'd find anywhere.”

Indeed. the Sisters of Misericorde, for all their quiet air of preoccupation with
the religious side of life, have gained a reputation for having solidly planted feet
when it comes to finances. Faith, however, still plays an important part in their
activities, as well as their prayers.

A flair for people

At the SGH, Sister St. Roseline was the strong organizer who, virtually out of
nothing, created something necessary and functional; her successor, Sister Marie
de Liesse, was the strong administrator with a flair for involving people.

Sister Marie de Liesse was born Marie Jeanne Cloutier in the village of L’Islet,
near Quebec City, and was one of 11 children. She spent several of her adult years
looking after younger brothers and sisters, then at the age of 29 she joined the
Sisters of Misericorde. She spoke no English when she entered a nurses’ training
school in 1929 at a New York hospital, but learned it quickly. She studied hospital
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Candystriper Mary Ann Mclnnes is shown receiving pin of merit from Sister Marie de Liesse
in 1970 after she completed 300 hours of volunteer service in the hospital.

administration and was an administrator in Winnipeg and Milwaukee before
arriving in Scarborough.

Over the years, familiarity with money matters on the part of the Sisters benefited
the hospital. In 1958, for example, Metropolitan Toronto asked the hospital for
three-quarters of an acre of hospital property to enable them to bring in line that
part of McCowan Road north of Lawrence Avenue with the south leg. A city
Controller advised Sister St. Roseline that the hospital would not be able to get
any money for it and suggested that she sell it to the municipality for a dollar. But
the Sister and the board set a price of $30,000 on it, and the offer was accepted. She
justified the charge by the fact that she needed the money for a new parking lot.

Sister St. Roseline also practiced diplomacy, as may be judged by a meeting she
held with the medical staff just before Christmas, 1959. In her remarks she first
acknowledged with gratitude their “faithful services,” then she mentioned their
“loyal cooperation and unselfish devotion, especially during the trying times at the
beginning of this institution,” and expressed thanks for the care some of them had
given some of the Sisters when they were ill. She mentioned the high standards
of the hospital, expressed the wish that it be second to none and the confidence that
the doctors “are all brave soldiers in the medical field, ready to do or die!”

Then the Sister asked to be allowed “before we close, to bring to your attention
a few little points.” These were: advise surgical patients to enter the hospital earlier
on the day preceding their operations; complete their medical histories “without
having to receive the crude treatment of suspension”; finally, since there was a
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shortage of nurses, avoid admitting patients “suffering from only old age or from
chronic illnesses and who do not require skilled nursing and hospital treatment.”

She then announced that henceforth the recreation and games room in the interns’
residence was open to all members of the medical staff, and wished all present a
merry Christmas and a happy New Year.

The bulldozer reappears

New construction to add about 155 beds was started in October, 1958, and com-
pleted in 1961. As the bulldozer appeared once more on the west side of the hospital
and began its roaring, Sister St. Roseline could look out on row upon row of new
houses where once she saw green [ields sloping gently away from a quiet branch of
Highland Creek. To her, the new houses meant more demands for hospital services.

Although no new campaign was started, contributions were solicited for the new
wing on a selective basis and financial support was received not only from the
federal and provincial governments but from the Township of Scarborough, the
Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto, industrial companies, clubs and associations,
banks and business firms, the hospital’s medical staff and its Women’s Auxiliary —
a constant and continuing source of help since it was organized in 1957.

Over the years the Women’s Auxiliary has not only raised funds and made
contributions which by 1972 had totalled $331,000, but the members have become
an essential part of the hospital. Their services have included: assisting in arts and
crafts and at the information desk, visiting patients and delivering flowers to them,
working in sewing groups, providing a tuck cart, maternity cart and gift wagon, and
running a gift shop in the main lobby.

W.A. members are easily identified by their pink smocks. Their junior assistants,
called Candystripers, wear pink-and-white striped jumpers. During the organiza-
tion’s year ending Sept. 20. 1972, there were 185 Candystripers, 15 of whom
received “300-hour™ pins for putting in that much time during the previous 12
months. There were that year 255 active adult members who paid dues and worked
in the hospital, and 70 associates who did not work in the hospital but paid higher
dues.

The enlarged hospital now included for the first time 22 beds for a children’s
ward. The addition also made possible an intensive-care unit for the critically ill.
With its 22 beds and the most modern equipment available for hospital use, it was
the first of its kind in Canada. A clinic for outpatients, including a dental service,
was another innovation.

Hallowe'en party in children’s ward is indicative of conscious efforts on part of staff to
promote happiness as well as good health.




By 1961 the General Council of the Sisters of Misericorde decided that the
Scarborough General Hospital was well launched and Sister St. Roseline’s work
was done. In October she was sent to Edmonton to direct the construction of a
550-bed hospital and Sister Marie de Liesse arrived to take over.

But it was only the following year that the need for expansion again became
apparent. Doctors were disturbed by the long waiting period for admission, and
patients were sometimes reluctantly discharged to make room for those waiting,
even when their doctors might want to keep them under observation for a few more
days. The population of Scarborough had continued to grow, there was increasing
traffic and consequently more traffic accidents, and the shortage of space was made
obvious by the tell-tale sign: beds in the corridors.

Ever a shortage of beds

In late November, Dr. Peter O'Hara, medical director, dramatized the need for
more financial support from the municipality when he interrupted an election
meeting at which Reeve A.M. Campbell was speaking: he led a St. Bernard dog
down the aisle and delivered an address. In the previous year, he said, Scarborough
had spent more than twice as much on a dog pound as it had on the hospital. “It’s
a dog’s life as far as seeking hospital accommodation is concerned,” he told the
amused audience. There was pressure too upon the Sisters from the Advisory Board
to start a further expansion.

The shortage of beds for children was particularly acute. Dr. Raymond LaForest,
chief of pediatrics. told the news media, “We have 22 beds in the pediatric ward
and could fill 150 more right away.” An item in the Scarborough Mirror on Nov. 9,
1962, carried the heading, “Scarboro Hospital reaches the crisis stage.” Regarding
the need for more children’s beds a doctor was quoted as saying, “These youngsters’
voices will be changing before they ever get in here.”

Dr. LaForest explained that more than half of the 150 emergency cases being
treated every day in the hospital came from Scarborough’s 110,000 children under
the age of 16. Many of the emergency cases involved poisoning. “We could treat
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95 per cent of all child illnesses here if we had the beds,” he said. “It’s a shame
people have to run downtown to visit patients when they have a community hospital
close by.”

In September, 1962, a record was set for the hospital when 374 babies were
delivered. In November Dr. O’Hara reported, “We filled 101 per cent of our 77-bed
capacity in obstetrics during the past two months.”

Dr. U.N. Jones, who had taken over chairmanship of the board, had resigned in
April of that year because he felt so strongly about the need for further expansion,
but he later withdrew his resignation. The Sisters were still paying off a large
mortgage and could not see their way to further commitments. In January, 1963,
Dr. Jones again resigned and three other members of the board left with him. This
time he did not return, and the chairmanship was taken over by Oliver Crockford.

The hospital asked the Scarborough Council for $1,000,000 to help it plan a
further addition. The Council asked for more representation on the Hospital’s
board. Dr. Jones — a retired dentist, a former Scarborough deputy reeve and for
ten years the chairman of Scarborough’s planning board — accepted the chairman-
ship of a steering committee to build a new hospital in the township. Then the need
for more hospital beds was tragically demonstrated: a woman, who had not been
able to obtain a bed in the Scarborough General, died at home.

“No one can be certain that the woman would have survived had a hospital bed
been found for her,” the Toronto Star editorialized. “But the tragic fact is that
Metro is short 2,600 hospital beds.”

The position at the Scarborough General was further complicated by the fact that
the Ontario Hospital Services Commission gave tentative approval to both the SGH
expansion and the construction of a new hospital to be called the Centenary and to

In 1972, as the Sisters of Misericorde bade farewell to the hospital, a testimonial was
presented to Sister Marie de Liesse by Thomas Wells, MPP for Scarborough North. Seen
left to right at rear are Dr. Owen B. Millar, chief of staff, and Bernard McCarthy, admini-
strator, and in front: Larry Kent, executive assistant to Mr. Wells, John B. Ridley, first
board chairman of the hospital, Oliver Crockford, the Sister, Mrs. Barbara Parker, president
of the Women's Auxiliary, Dr. P.J. O'Hara, medical director, and Mayor Robert White of
Scarborough.
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“It is almost impossible to imagine the development which 1s certain to occur in this
community in the next five to ten years. Hospital facilities have been badly needed in this
area for many years and as the industrial and residential communities expand it is urgent
that a general hospital be provided.” he added.

The ceremony was attended by leaders of the Campaign for Building Funds, as well as
officials to be served by the hospital. On behalf of fund leaders, W. Carl Cannon, co-
chairman, described the ceremony as “the beginning of another link in the chain of health
protection for Metropolitan Toronto and vicinity.

“During the past few years, we have all been close to this great community expansion;
the rapid increases in population and the growth of our industrial communities. With this
growth has come the increasing urgency for health protection for the employees of our
industries and our residents. The need is obviously going to become greater in years to
come,” he said.

To be built at a cost of $2,300,000 the hospital will be administered by the Sisters of
Misericorde under the direction of a lay board appointed under the Ontario Hospital Act.
This board will be representative of all citizens of the areas to be served by the hospital,
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regardless of race or religion.

Funds are to come from voluntary gifts, anticipated federal, provincial and municipal
grants and from a minimum contribution of $500,000 from the Sisters of Misericorde.

Reeve O.E. Crockford, of Scarborough. where the hospital site is located, paid tribute to
the Sisters of Misericorde whose reputation in hospital administration, he said, was one of
the finest on the continent. He also felt sure that the hospital fund committee could count
on full support of the industries and residents of the Scarborough area in whose interests
the hospital is being constructed.

The importance of the hospital to the industrial communities of Leaside and Scarborough
was emphasized by Leaside councillor Charles H. Hiscott who saw in the hospital facilities
“an insurance for the preservation of the health of industrial workers so essential to the
success of business enterprises in both communities.

“With impending highway construction — the extension of Eglinton Avenue and construc-
tion of the By-Pass — drawing Leaside and Scarborough within minutes of each other,” he
said, “the Scarborough General Hospital will play an increasing role in the health and
welfare of Leaside residents and industries.”

Markham Township Reeve Alfred LeMasurier recalled that residents of the township were
forced to rely on already over-crowded facilities of City of Toronto hospitals whose remote-
ness often meant the difference between life and death. He termed the new Scarborough
Hospital project “an essential investment for the future™. He felt that the trend of population
increase in the township would make the accessible facilities of a general hospital even more
vital.

Minutes of first meeting of Advisory Board

On Wednesday, December Ist, 1954, the Sisters of Misericorde of St. Mary’s Hospital,
Toronto, invited the Members of the Advisory Board of the new Scarborough General
Hospital to a Dinner, preceeding the first meeting of the Board.

The following members were present:

Mr. John B. Ridley Mr. W. Carl Cannon
Doctor M.K. Bochner Mr. O.W. Rodomar
Mr. J.M. Garvey Mr. H.E. Wright
Mr. R.E. Sutton Mr. J.F. Murphy
Mr. Wm. Champion Doctor U.N. Jones
Mr. W.C. Kennedy Sister St. Roseline

Sister St. Eustelle, Superior.

Invited guests included: Mrs. Campbell, Doctor O’Hara, Doctor Johnston, Mr. Avery,
Mr. Cameron and Mr. Kaminker.

At 7.30 P.M. the Chair was taken by Mr. Ridley and he took the opportunity to convey
to the Reverend Sisters, the appreciation of all present for the very excellent dinner. This
was unanimously endorsed with applause.

The Chairman emphasized that this was the first meeting of the Advisory Board of the
Scarborough General Hospital. Many of the group had met previously during the formative
stages of the new hospital and now the time had come for a full Board to become active.
Mr. Ridley explained that in past years, hospitals owned by a Religious Order were not
required to have a Board and had administered their Hospitals efficiently without a Board.,
but the Ontario Hospitals Act now requires all hospitals to have a lay Board but in Sister-
owned hospitals, leaves the administration to the Sisters, with the assistance of an Advisory
Board. In time, the Sisters hope that this Board which represents all branches of the com-
munity, will be of great assistance in the administration of the Hospital.

At this point, the Chairman requested Mr. Cameron to act as Secretary for this meeting.

The Chairman pointed out that, in order to function properly, the Board should have a
Constitution and the Sisters of Misericorde had prepared one similar to that used in other
Sister Hospitals. The Constitution was presented for consideration and the Chairman asked
the Secretary to read it.

MOTION
It was moved by Mr. J.M. Garvey, seconded by Doctor O’Hara, that the Constitution be
adopted.

After a short discussion in which Doctor Jones, Mr. Murphy and Mr. Cannon took part,
the motion was put to the meeting and unanimously adopted.

The Chairman suggested that the election of Officers of the Board be left until the next
meeting, in order that the members have time to study the Constitution, copies of which will
be sent to them. He further suggested that an Executive Committee be elected in order that
the Sisters might have an authority to consult in the meantime. In so far as Mr. Enman,
Mr. Ridley and Mr. Cannon had been acting in that capacity. it was suggested that these
members be elected.
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It was stated that the Executive Committee would bring to the Advisory Board any
business done at their meetings for ratification.

MOTION

It was moved by Mr. Murphy, seconded by Doctor Bochner, that Mr. Enman, Mr. Ridley and
Mr. Cannon and two of the Sisters of Misericorde be elected to the Executive Committee.

Carried Unanimously.

The Chairman called on Sister St. Roseline for a report on the cost of construction and
equipment for the new hospital.

Sister St. Roseline graciously paid tribute to the assistance received from many sources;
the several firms who generously donated toward the fund: Mrs. Campbell in connection
with the financial campaign and in particular, the members of the Advisory Board. The
Reverend Sister then gave a very excellent and detailed report, the highlights of which were:
the total grants received and to be received, the contributions and funds raised by the
campaigns, pledges and anticipated revenue from the campaigns and the contribution by the
Sisters of Misericorde as well as the cost of construction and equipment. The report was
received with applause.

Mr. Kaminker, when called upon, gave a very encouraging report on the progress of
construction and spoke of the good work of the various contractors. He has been keeping in
touch with the various municipal departments in Scarborough in an effort to obtain water
and sewage systems when needed. Mr. Kaminker would not commit himself in the matter of
the completion of the hospital but he said it would be either late in 1955 or early in 1956.

Mr. Kaminker answered several questions regarding the sewage plans and also stated that
he hoped to very soon certify that the construction had reached the halfway mark and thus
the Federal and Provincial grants would be forthcoming.

Mrs. Campbell gave a report on the Financial Campaign, including contributions and
pledges received to date and the campaign expenses. Mrs. Campbell also explained a number
of uncompleted projects, particularly the Markham Township Campaign, which had started
at a later date.

Mr. Ridley invited Mr. Wright to tell of his activities in the Financial Campaign in the
Scarborough area, after paying a very fitting tribute to the enthusiastic and untiring efforts
of Mr. Wright on behalf of the Hospital. Mr. Wright outlined his work for the Campaign
prior to his going to Europe on holiday and the situation after his return which prompted
him to obtain from the Reverend Sisters, permission to organize a local campaign in the
Scarborough area. He explained that the people of Scarborough really wanted to help and
told of various instances of groups being left out of other campaign efforts, rallying and
doing a lot of hard work. The results to date of the Scarborough Campaign were in Mrs.
Campbell’s report but Mr. Wright felt that there would be more contributions coming.

Mr. Champion then spoke of the work done in Markham, of the difficulties at first
encountered and of the satisfaction of the results when misunderstandings were cleared up.

The Chairman asked Mr. Cameron to report on an offer from the Municipality of Metro-
politan Toronto to purchase a portion of the Scarborough Hospital property from the Sisters
of Misericorde. The lot in question is a hundred foot strip on the westerly side of the property
and after various meetings with the Director of Real Estate, an offer of Four Thousand
Dollars was received. The correspondence was read and a report of the negotiations given
for the consideration of the Advisory Board.

MOTION:

Moved by Mr. Cannon, seconded by Mr. Murphy, that the offer be accepted, with the
following condition: namely, if and when the property was to be used for any other purpose
than for which it was sold, the Sisters of Misericorde would be priviledged to purchase it
back at the price at which it was now being sold.

Unanimously Carried.

Sister St. Roseline presented a resolution, read by Mr. Ridley, with regard to a public
expression of gratitude for assistance in the campaigns and the closing of the campaign on
December 15th, 1954.

MOTION:
Moved by Mr. Champion, seconded by Mr. Wright, that the resolution be adopted.
Unanimously Carried.

RESOLVED:

That the Advisory Board of the Scarborough General Hospital put on record, their grateful
thanks and appreciation to those individuals and organizations, who contributed so
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Taken in 1973 when original hospital and three additions had been completed, this
aerial photo shows the abundance of homes and other buildings whose construction was
partly encouraged by presence of hospital. Compare with earlier photo. Both were taken
by Gordon H. Jarrett and appear in Metropolitan Toronto Past and Present published
in 1973 by Donald Boyce Kirkup, Willowdale, Ont.

generously to the Financial Campaign in its various phases during 1953 and 1954, and
thereby made possible the progress of the Hospital building that is in evidence today.

The Board would also like to pay tribute to all those volunteer workers who have given
so unselfishly of their time and ability and who have sacrificed leisure time and pleasure
to work for the campaign. While at this time we express thanks and appreciation, we hope
that when they see the new hospital opened and serving the community. they will feel glad
that it was their pleasure to serve in its establishment.

Although the objective has not been reached it is felt inadvisable to continue the campaign
for the present and it is the wish of the Advisory Board that the campaign be terminated on
December 15th, 1954. Arrangements will be made to follow up unfinished business at that
time, including all pledges made. There will be no further publicity or active campaigning
and no responsibility will be accepted for campaign expenses after Dec. 15th.

The Sisters of Misericorde wish to publicly express gratitude and thanks for the financial
support and the many, many kindnesses shown to them and the assistance given to them by
the citizens of the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto in their great undertaking to establish
a General Hospital in the community of Scarborough.

Excerpt from minutes of Advisory Board

A meeting of the Advisory Board of the Scarborough General Hospital was held on April
17th, 1956, at which the Medical Board were guests.

PRESENT:

Mr. J.B. Ridley Mr. O. Crockford Dr. Hargrave

Mr. H. Wright Controller Cornish Dr. Sullivan

Mr. Wm. Champion Dr. Bochner Dr. Hodgkiss

Mr. A. Reavie Dr. Johnston Sister St. Eustelle

Mr. R. Sutton MPP Dr. Cameron Sister St. Roseline

Dr. U. Jones Dr. O’Hara Sister Mary D'Lourdes
Mr. E.A. Bruce Dr. Millar Sister St. Celine

Mr. C.G. Cameron Dr. Mackay Sister St. Lucy

Mr. Ridley occupied the Chair and after welcoming the Medical Board to the first Advisory
Board meeting since the Hospital began to operate, and the first joint meeting of the two
Boards, pointed out that the Medical Board, more than the rest of us, would realize what
the Sisters had accomplished after four years of tremendous effort. Mr. Ridley paid great
tribute to the courage and faith of the Sisters who faced problems that seemed impossible
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of solution, yet were overcome, and today a beautiful, modern, efficiently equipped hospital
is in operation and serving the residents of the community.

Minutes of Advisory Board meeting, May 30, 1961

Minutes of the Advisory Board Meeting held in the Board Room of the Scarborough General
Hospital on Tuesday, May 30th, 1961.

Present were: Mr. O.W. Funk, Chairman, Dr. U.N. Jones, Vice-Chairman. Mr. C.G.
Cameron, Secretary, Dr. M.K. Bochner, Dr. C.D. Farquharson, Mr. E. Bruce, Mr. W.
Champion, Mr. O.E. Crockford. Mr. H. Shipley, Mr, R.E. Sutton, Mr. H.E. Wright, Father
G. Cherrier and Mr, I.B. Ridley. Also the following new members, as introduced by Mr.
Funk: Mr. P. Anderson, Mr. H.F. Carroll, Mr. W.E. Cranor, Mr, H.A. Derderian, Mr. F.J.
Dilworth, Mr. C.L. Snaith and Mr. R. Whitten.

Sisters present were: Sister St. Edithe, Superintendent, Sister St. Roseline, Administrator
and other members of the Trustees.

Mr. Funk declared the meeting open at 8.05 p.m.

Before proceeding he expressed thanks for the lovely Dinner which the Sisters had
provided.

Mr. Funk extended a welcome to all members of the Board, both the old and the new.
This was the first meeting for one year and it was a pleasure to have so many members in
attendance.

Mr. Funk proceeded with the introduction of the new members of the Board, after which
he asked the older members to stand for introduction.

For the benefit of the new members, Mr. Funk gave a brief explanation of the Advisory
Board of the Scarborough General Hospital. He pointed out that the hospital is owned by the
Sisters of Misericorde — by many rights — by virtue of investing money — by virtue of
dedication to the service of the people of this community — by virtue of their many, many
efforts in the interest of the welfare of, not only the sick people, but the well people of the
district. They do not work for money, but for the glory of God and for humanity. All they
hope to get out of life is a place to rest, enough food and the satisfaction that comes from
service. Scarborough General Hospital is, in a sense. a Community Institution because it
serves the community, but the Sisters own it. It is governed by the Trustees, who are members
of the Order of the Sisters of Misericorde. The Trustees govern the activities of the hospital
and this Board is advisory to the Trustees. represented on this occasion by Sister Superior,
Sister Administrator and others. Mr. Funk asked the Sisters to stand for recognition.

Mr. Funk regretfully extended his resignation as Chairman of the Board which, he said,
after four years of service and in view of the many pleasant associations made during his
term of office, was not easy to do. He expressed his deep appreciation and thanks to the
members of the Board for their assistance in the past and asked for formal acceptance of his
resignation.

Mr. Shipley moved that Mr. Funk’s resignation be accepted. Seconded by Mr. Wright,
carried unanimously.

Mr. Bruce expressed the pleasure it had been to be associated with Mr. Funk and stated
that his resignation was received with regret.

Nominations were called for a new Chairman and Mr. Wright submitted Dr. U.N. Jones
for this post. There being no further nominations for the Chairmanship, Mr. Cameron moved
they be closed. It was seconded and carried unanimously that Dr. Jones be elected Chairman
of the Board.

Mr. Funk, after congratulating Dr. Jones, turned the chair over to him. Dr. Jones said he
was most appreciative of the honour bestowed upon him. He offered best wishes to Mr. and
Mrs. Funk in the years ahead and hoped that Mr. Funk’s picture would one day be given a
place of honour in the hospital.

Dr. Jones said it had been a long time since the last meeting. but it was his hope that in
the future the members would feel they were really a part of this hospital. He felt it was the
responsibility of the Board to be more informed regarding facts and figures in connection
with the operation of the hospital in order that they could enlighten the public in this regard.
He was sure, that with Sister St. Roseline’s help in the re-organization of the Board, they
could assume more responsibility in the future,

Nominations were called for the post of Vice-Chairman.

Mr. Cameron nominated Mr. Oliver Crockford for this post because of his keen interest
in Scarborough and the Hospital. Seconded by Father G. Cherrier, carried unanimously.

The Board having regretfully accepted Mr. Gordon Cameron’s resignation, Mr. Bruce
moved that Mr. Fred Forster be elected Secretary of the Board, in view of his excellent
qualifications in this respect. This was seconded by Mr. Cameron and carried unanimously.

After requesting postponement of the election of Members for the various Committees.
Dr. Jones called upon Sister St. Roseline to address the Board.

Dr. Jones thanked Sister St. Roseline for her enlightening address and said he was sure
all the members would agree that financially she had done an excellent job.
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He called upon cach one of the older members of the Board to say a few words as an
introduction to the new members present. He hoped they would all enjoy their association
with the Board.

Following Mr. Ridley’s remarks in respect to the lack of civic services during the early
stages of construction. Sister St. Roseline recalled the fact that Mr. Sutton had personally
approached the Government and had obtained $200,000 as a compensation for the many
difficulties experienced. This came at a time when it was much needed and the Sisters were
ever grateful to Mr. Sutton for his assistance.

On behalf of the new members, Mr. Derderian expressed appreciation for this opportunity
to become acquainted and hoped that, in the future they could, in co-operation with the
senior members of the Board, contribute to the services of the hospital.

Copies of the proposed Bylaws. Rules and Regulations were given to each member of the
Board and, at Dr. Jones’ request, discussion of them was postponed till the next meeting.
At 9.15 p.m. Dr. Jones moved that the meeting be adjourned.

Administrator’s report to the Board of Directors — November 24,1970

It seems a very short two months since our last meeting. The hospital has been very busy
with bed occupancy running over 90%.

Psychiatry

The Psychiatric Unit has been extremely active under Dr. Herman Gelber’s direction since
his appointment as interim chief of Psychiatry in September. The activities of this unit,
consisting of in patients, out patients and day care, increased 30% in October. Dr. Gelber
and his staff are presently reviewing all of the unit's activities during the past six weeks
and we expect it will provide an even more remarkable amount of service in the future.

Welcome back

We were speaking with Mr. Lawrence this week and are happy to learn that he is back on
his feet again, working part time and hoping to attend our next meeting,.

Construction

Our new ambulance parage and emergency entrance is not yet finished but the major con-
struction is completed and we have every hope of putting it into use by the end of November.

Acereditation

As anticipated last meeting, following review of our hospital in August by the Canadian
Council on Hospital Accreditation’s surveyor, Dr. Andre Lizotte. we have again been
awarded Accredited status.

Slide presentation

We welcomed Dr. Lloyd Carlsen back to the hospital last week after his second tour in
Vietnam with the Voluntary Medical Aid program. Dr. Carlsen is going to tell us about his
experiences at a meeting in the Auditorium on Tuesday, November 24, beginning at 7:00
p.m. We think this will be most interesting and all are welcome to attend. Unfortunately
we could not avoid a slight overlap with the Board meeting at 8:00 p.m.

United Appeal

Thanks to the efforts of Mr. Russ Avery, Director of Personnel Services. and some 35
volunteer canvassers from our many departments, we have just completed our most success-
ful United Appeal campaign, with a total contribution of approximately $4.500.

OHA convention

Several of the staff members attended various sessions of the Ontario Hospital Association
Convention program at the Royal York Hotel on October 26, 27 and 28. We were very
happy that three members of our Board — Mrs. Loverseed, Mr. Carroll and Mr. Dilworth.
were able to attend the Annual Convention Banquet on Tuesday evening, October 27,

Chaplain service

Father Cranley. our Chaplain, has just returned from a two week course in Washington, D.C.,
on the subject of “Spiritual Care for Hospital Patients”. Several Toronto hospitals have
set up spiritual care programs in the last few years and we are hopeful that Father Cranley,
with the help of the many clergymen who regularly visit patients in Scarborough General
will be able to set up a worthwhile program of this type.
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Special meetings

Among the several interesting groups meeting in our Auditorium recently is the East Toronto
Medical Secretaries Association who, with about 150 members in attendance, held an all
day seminar on October 24. On the evening of October 22, the Canadian Diabetic
Association — East Toronto Branch — were here for an organizational, social and instructional
evening. On October 20, Mrs. A. Nield, Candystriper Chairman, was hostess to a very
successful party in honour of our Candystripers.

Christmas parties

Christmas is coming and we are looking forward to the Medical Staff Dinner here on the
evening of Wednesday, December 16.

For the past two years employees have put on a swinging Christmas Party in which they
have demonstrated a great deal of talent and enthusiasm for “Show Business”. These have
been so successful that we can no longer accommodate the crowd in our auditorium and
this year they are arranging to hold the party on December 4 at the Centennial Civic Centre
Auditorium, 1967 Ellesmere Road. I take the liberty of inviting all Board members. I
am sure you would be most welcome, be well entertained and, perhaps like me, be surprised
at the unexpected variety of talent among our staff.

Women's Auxiliary

The Women’s Auxiliary is holding its Annual General Meeting here on the evening of
November 23. At this meeting Mrs. W.A. Parker will succeed to the position of President
which Mrs. Betty Loverseed has carried so well over the past two years. We take this
opportunity of thanking Mrs. Loverseed for her excellent work and of warmly welcoming
Mrs. Parker as her successor.

Another feature of this meeting will be the presentation of chevrons to five and ten year
WA members.

Long service pins

On December 22 we will be distributing long service pins to about forty members of our
staff who will have attained five years service and about thirty more with ten years. We also
plan to acknowledge at this time the ‘Famous Fourteen’ who have been with us since our
opening in 1956. We deeply regret that Mr. Herman Schwarz, our executive chef since
the opening of the hospital and prior to that at St. Mary’s Hospital, will not be among this
select group. His sudden and unexpected death on October 25 was a great shock to us all.

Special item

An unusual ceremony was held in the Board Room on Sunday, November 15, when repre-
sentatives of the Gideon Society presented the hospital with 300 Testaments for the use
of our patients. In addition to Sister Therese Bonneville from Montreal, Sister Cecile
L'Heureux and myself, some thirty members of our staff attended this presentation.

Letters

From the several letters of commendation we have received, we have arbitrarily selected
the following:

“I was confined to your Hospital from August 2nd to 6th, 1970 as a result of an
emergency appendoctomy.

During this period I was very happy with the care and treatment received from all
those who had contact with me but was particularly pleased with the Nursing Staff on
Tower 7, who in my view performed their duties in the best tradition of their Profession.

You may wish to make the persons concerned aware of my comments.

E.G. Grant, Sergeant
R:CM.P.*

Sister Marie de Liesse

Letter, June 5, 1972

Dear Members of the Board, Medical Staff, Women’s Auxiliary, faithful employees of
Scarborough General Hospital and fellow citizens of Scarborough:

Today we have a message of great importance to communicate to each and every one of
the Scarborough General Hospital family and friends. The Misericordia Sisters who, with
the help of many citizens, have given birth to this hospital sixteen years ago and who together
have guided it through its infancy and part of its adolescence, are today very proud of the
heritage they are leaving to the Scarborough citizens and are most confident that its new
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tutors will successfully and brilliantly guide this precious young adolescent into adulthood.

The news media has already several times revealed to you the many factors that motivated
the Misericordia Sisters to eventually part with Scarborough General Hospital. This does not
make parting any easier. Rest assured that if the link can no longer remain tangible, it will
without a doubt remain a spiritual one. The years of service we have given to this community
have been among the happiest of our lives.

Scarborough General Hospital has always enjoyed the best of reputations, and has been
noteworthy for the staff’s quality of presence to the patients at all times. We know you are
all very proud of this reputation and that you will do everything in your power to perpetuate
it if not to better it still. Even after we will have left Scarborough General Hospital we, like
you, will always want to be proud of the institution with which we have been associated for
SO many years.

Finally, may we thank each and every one of you wholeheartedly for being such precious
collaborators and faithful supporters of the Sisters throughout all these years. Without this
continued collaboration and support the Sisters’ efforts would have been in vain. We know
that our successors will be able to count on you and we invite you to give them this assurance
immediately for it is the key to the success of any undertaking.

Again, may we reiterate that our hearts will remain with you all and we humbly thank
the citizens of Scarborough for the great privilege they have given us to be of service here
for so many years. Scarborough General Hospital is turning a new page of its history. May
God continue to guide its destiny.

The Misericordia Sisters,

Sister Marie de Liesse, s.m.
President of the Corporation.

Press Release, June 22, 1972
Last nun leaves Scarborough General

The last of the Sisters of Misericorde, who have owned and operated the Scarborough
General Hospital since they built it in 1956, today (Thursday) left the hospital. She was
Sister Marie de Liesse who was administrator from 1961 until her retirement on April |
of this year, when the hospital was turned over to the lay direction of its board of governors.
The Sister left by air for Winnipeg where, in spite of her 74 years, she will continue in an
active role as coordinator of spiritual care of patients for the Misericordia Hospital in that
city.

At the Scarborough General to see her off and wish her well were: John B. Ridley, first
chairman of the hospital board; Oliver Crockford, ex reeve of Scarborough, 11 years
board chairman and recently appointed first honorary chairman for life; Mayor Robert White,
present mayor of Scarborough; Dr. Owen B. Millar, chief of staff; Dr. P.J. O’Hara, medical
director; Mrs. Barbara Parker, president of the Women’s Auxiliary; Bernard McCarthy,
present administrator.

The Sisters of Mercy, as they are sometimes called, have been active in Toronto since
1914 when they first set up a small house to look after unmarried mothers — an interest
for which they.were founded in Montreal in 1848. In Toronto their work was gradually
expanded until they developed St. Mary’s Hospital into a 30-bed maternity hospital on an
adjacent property. This was sold to help finance the first unit of the Scarborough General
which has had three expansions and now has 640 beds.

Sister Marie de Liesse said that the reason her order gave up the Scarborough General,
as it has three other hospitals in recent years, was because of the gradually diminishing
number of nuns. When the Scarborough General opened there were upwards of 600
members of the order, most of them in hospitals in Canada, the United States and Africa.
Today there are only about 375, including those who are sick and over-age.

“We will miss the Sisters very much,” said Mr. McCarthy. “I have always said, they’re a
hard act to follow. They have given the hospital a spirit which is easy to feel but hard to
describe. They devoted themselves to their work 24 hours a day and seven days a week,
and it is a challenge to the rest of us to try to give as much.”

Philosophy and objectives of Scarborough General Hospital

1. The Scarborough General Hospital is an assembly of people motivated by the two
precepts, love of God and love of man, and who show this love by directing their talents,
training and energies to the maintenance and restoration of health for all admitted to
care. Such care recognizes the breadth of man’s needs and attempts to fulfill these
through the use of every available resource.
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2. In harmony with the hospital’s purpose it seeks to serve every man, regardless of illness
or financial status, and irrespective of race, colour or creed.

3. To ensure excellent care, the hospital endeavours to have qualified and competent
people associated with it, and it undertakes to treat all with justice and respect for their
personal worth and dignity.

4, Through education and research the hospital seeks to ensure the continued competence
and development of its staff, and to enable increasing numbers of people to become
knowledgeable and skillful in health care.

5. All donations to Scarborough General Hospital and monies received for patient care
are used for the benefit of the hospital and not for any other purpose.

6. Scarborough General Hospital actively participates in community planning to ensure
optimum use of resources for the health needs of the people whom it serves.

Brief history of hospital written by Sister St. Roseline
for the French-speaking members of her Order

Une question qui demeure isolée mais non moins illuminative sur les faits véridiques
concernant 'existence de 'oeuvre des méres célibataires dans la Ville de Toronto est comme
suit:

Le vieux chiteau qui avait abrité filles et enfants pendant 33 ans vient d’étre condamné
par la loi “trop vieux pour vivre”, c’est-d-dire que vu les inconvénients de cette maison on ne
nous permettait plus d’opérer des services hospitaliers. Déja nous avions regu un avertisse-
ment de ce genre, mais nous I'avoins ignoré. Ainsi donc, que faire? Ou partir ot construire!?

Il allait du désir et du vouloir de Mére Ste Madeleine de Pazzi, alors Supérieure générale,
de soutenir notre oeuvre dans la ville de Toronto, vu que nous y avoins été conduites par
la voix de Dieu, sur linvitation de Mgr McNeil, Archevéque de Toronto, confirmé par
Megr Bruchési, Archevéque de Montréal. Mére Ste Madeleine de Pazzi insista a ce que nous
cherchions du support financier pour construire un Home. Il n’était pas question de I'hdpital.

A cet effet nous commencgons nos pérégrinations. Premiérement nous elimes une entrevue
avec Son Eminence le Cardinal McGuigan qui nous encouragea beaucoup, nous engagea
méme trés fermement & demeurer dans la ville de Toronto, pour accomplir 'oeuvre des
filles-méres et que nous étions sincérement désirées, mais pas un sou de la part du Diocése
nous serait donné. “Allez a la ville” nous dit Son Eminence. Nous y sommes allées.

Quelques jours plus tard, & I'heure désignée nous nous rendons a I'Hétel de Ville pour
rencontrer le Maire et ses Conseillers, en assemblée. Aprés avoir exposé notre projet, les
circonstances qui 'entourent, etc. on nous dit: “Mes Soeurs nous avons un grand respect
et beaucoup d'admiration pour votre Communauté, mais vous n’avez rien fait pour la ville
de Toronto”. Nous avons répondu: “Messieurs ce que nous avons fait pour la ville de
Toronto ne vous est pas révélé, cest un service discret que a été opéré en cette maison.
Vous seriez étonnés de connaitre les services qui ont été rendus secrétement aux citoyens
de la ville de Toronto et autres”. etc. etc. Sur cela ils nous disent: “Peut-étre que la ville
vous donnera un octroi de $70,000.00”, pas trés certain cependant. Dans la suite nous
allons au Gouvernement, toujours avec notre projet en vue, construire un Home pour les
filles-méres. Ici, on nous a répondu catégoriquement: “Non” pas de Building Grant pour
un institut de ce genre, c’est un probléme individuel, il y a une mére, il y a un peére, etc.
etc. ete.

Le lendemain, un de nos bons amis du gouvernement, Mr Telfer, qui avait été témoin
de notre désappointement de la veille, nous invite par téléphone de nous rendre a son
bureau, au Parlement. Nous y allons avec un peu d’espérance dans I'ame, croyant que
peut-étre le vent avait tourné et qu'on allait nous annoncer que les Messieurs du Gouverne-
ment avaient changé leur opinion et qu’on allait nous offrir un octroi. Mais non, en bon
ami, il voulait tout simplement nous aviser, et voici ce que Mr. Tefler nous dit: “Mes Soeurs,
construisez un petit hopital de 150 lits, sur la rue Jarvis, vous recevrez un octroi, vous
accommoderez vos filles & leur terme et vous aurez des moyens pour survivre.”

En décembre 1951, Soeur Ste Roseline aidée de Soeur Marie de la Trinité, est
désignée pour faire des investigations préliminaires en vue d’un projet de construction.
Il avait été question de construire un hopital de 150 lits sur la rue Jarvis, a I'emplacement
de 'H6pital St Mary’s oll nos Soeurs avaient habité une école qui appartenait au Diocése
de Toronto et dont les Soeurs de Lorette avaient laissée vacante. C'était en 1914, I'année
ol la Communauté faisait son entrée dans la Ville Reine, pour se dévouer aux soins des
meéres célibataires.

Aprés avoir considéré la dimension de la propriété, Jarvis trouvée peu favorable nous
cédons aux instances de Mr Crockford, Reeve de Scarborough, et nous nous engageons
a étudier la possibilité de nous transférer en cet endroit ol il y avait un si pressant besoin
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d’un hépital. Puis, vu l'existence d’un centre industriel dans cette localité qui se développait
trés rapidement, et une population toujours grandissante, il nous serait plus avantageux et
en plus de sécurité de nous établir dans cette région.

Février 1952 nous sommes convoquées a une assemblée tenue officiellement a I'hétel
de ville de Scarborough. Tous les Membres de la Municipalité de Scarborough étaient
présents. Prenaient part a cette assemblée le Dr. O’Hara représentant du Corps Médical
de St-Mary’s, Mr. Ridout, secrétaire du Conseil d’Administration de St-Mary’s, Madame
Leeder membre d'une Société de Dames Patronesses, Sr. Ste. Roseline et Sr. Marie de la
Trinité. Notre rapport présenté au Conseil Général fut étudié et accepté avec recom-
mandation de poursuivre le projet.

Le 9 juillet 1953, nous recevons l'approbation des autorités du gouvernement de faire
suite @ notre projet, conformément aux plans de construction déja en action d’études d'un
hépital & Scarborough.

Le 19 juillet 1952, nous procédons a l'achat du terrain, situé au centre du District
de Scarborough, coin de 'avenue Lawrence et rue McGowan. Ce choix est confirmé par
les autorités civiles, nos architectes et autres membres intéressés. La dimension est de 25
acres, $1,200.00 I'acre, soit: le coiit total $30,000.00.

7 avril 1954, tout le régiment intéressé au futur hopital était sur le terrain pour
procéder a la premiére pelletée de terre. Cette cérémonie sema beaucoup d’enthousiasme
dans les esprits de tous les citoyens, non seulement de Scarborough, mais de toutes les
Municipalités adjacentes.

Aprés ’étude et la continuité du travail des plans qui dura six mois, la construction d’un
hopital de 190 lits est mise en marche, suivie d’une résidence pour infirmiéres, 60 lits,
un Home pour filles-méres, 30 lits. Nos Architectes Govan, Ferguson, Lindsey, Langley,
Keenleyside et Kaminker sont tous des spécialistes d’hopitaux, c’est Mr Kaminker qui
dirigea l'entreprise.

Le 4 janvier 1956, aprés avoir libéré St Mary’s de son ameublement qui fut transporté
au nouvel Hapital, nos Soeurs ferment les portes, disent adieu a la rue Jarvis et se dirigent
vers Scarborough, pour y demeurer définitivement. Sr Ste Eustelle, Supérieure, Sr Ste
Roseline, administrative, Sr Marie-Bernard, asste. Soeur Marie d’Egypte et Sr St Gélase,
compagnes. — Un mois plus tard, notre famille de St. Mary’s Home. sous la direction de
Sr Marie Madeleine vient prendre possession de sa nouvelle demeure au Rosalie Hall.

12 mai 1956, eut lieu l'ouverture officielle. Cette cérémonie avait été précédée par
la dédicace de la chapelle, sous la Présidence de Son Eminence Cardinal McGuigan. Bon
nombre de hauts personnages ainsi que bienfaiteurs et amis se joignirent & nous, pour
célébrer la gloire d'une oeuvre humanitaire. Son Eminence, dans son allocution a I'assemblée
souhaita que l'esprit du “good-will” se continue. Nous constatons aujourd’hui, aprés 11
ans d’activité combien les voeux de Son Eminence se sont réalisés.

Apres un an et demi, juin 1957, sur notre demande, les Inspecteurs de I'Ontario Hospital
Association, viennent faire une inspection de I’hépital, en vue de 'accréditation. L’organisa-
tion générale de I'hopital, le bon fonctionnement du Corps Médical, la perspective de
progres éminents, nous meritérent 'aceréditation. Ainsi Scarborough General Hospital fut
accrédité, pour un an, moyennant de renouveler toutes nos procédures a la date révolue,
septembre 1957. Ce qui fut fait et jugé favorable.

En avril 1958, aprés avoir constaté les besoins d’un service hospitalier de la popula-
tion régionale, nous soumettons & notre Conseil général, aux autorités locales et provinciales,
notre projet d’extension qui fut approuvé unanimement. Au cours d’octobre 1958, le
bulldozer fait de nouveau son apparition au coté ouest de I'’hdpital. Il s’agit d’élever une
aile de 160" de long, 50" de large, 4 étages le rez-de-chaussé non compris. 160 lits
pour adultes et 42 pour nouveaux-nés. A la suite de cet agrandissement, 'hdpital s’éléve
a une capacité de 352 lits. Le Comité Médical comprend 96 membres, 26 spécialistes
inclusivement.

Le coiit collectil de ces batisses est de 35,107,204.91, y compris le Home des Méres
célibataires.

Les supports financiers nous sont venus de nos Gouvernements, Fédéral et Provincial,
le Township de Scarborough, la Municipalit¢é Métropolitaine de Toronto, les Compagnies
Industrielles, les Associations Religieuses et Sociales, autres, au moyen d’une campagne
organisée dont les frais furent défrayés par I'Hépital St-Mary’s vente de la Propriété-
Jarvis, vente de deux fractions du terrain de notre propriété a Scarborough. Le terrain de
I'hépital & Scarborough a été payé par St-Mary’s.

Une hypothéque d'un $1.000,000.00 avec une échéance de 13 ans a été appliqué
sur I'immeuble de Scarborough couvrant le coin de Lawrence Av. et rue McGowan, jusqu’a
'arriére des résidence de gardes-malades.
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Administrators

Sister St. Roseline, /1954-6/
Sister Marie de Liesse, /196/-72

Mr. Bernard McCarthy, /972-present.

Chiefs of Staft:

Dr. Lloyd Bochner, [/956-64
Dr. P.J. O'Hara, 1964-70
Dr. O.B. Millar, 1970-present.

Members of the Scarborough General Hospital Advisory Board 1954-1972

Anderson, Philip G., /96/-64
Apps, C.J.S., 1961-63
Bamford, A.H., 1956-57
Barker, George, /963
Bochner, Dr. M. K., /954-69
Brand, Dr. D.J.R., /1971-72
Breuls, Dr. A.M., 1967-69
Bruce, E.A., 1955-66
Bull, Dr. J. Alan, /965-71
Byles, W.D., 1967-72
Cameron, C. Gordon, /954-64
Campbell, A.M., 1958-68
Cannon, W. Carl, 1954-57
Carmichael, Donald, /957-58
Carroll, Harry F., 1967-72
Cavanagh, John, /967-69
Champion, Wm. H., /1954-6/
Cherrier, Rev. George J., 1957-61
Connery, Lance, /963-67
Cornish, F.J., 1954-56
Cragg, John C., 1957-59
Cranor, Wm. E., 196/-67
Crockford, O.E., 1955-72
(Chairman, 1963-72)
Crosby, Herbert, 1972
Datzeff, Dr. G.A., [1967-68
Dennett, Jack, /954-56
Derderian, Harry A., /961-64
Dilworth, F.J., 1961-72
Enfield, F.A., 1956
Enman, Horace L., /1954-57
Evans, Mrs. Hazel, /963-64
Evans, W.H., /968-72
Farquharson, Dr. C.D., [956-7!
Forster, Fred E., /958-68

Funk, Oscar W., Chairman 1957-61

Garvey, J.M., 1954
Grogan, Dr. D.R., 1969-72
Harrison, Brian, /965-67

Hilliard, D.T., 1969-7/
Hood, Dr, D.C., 1967-68

Jones, Dr. Unsworth N., /954-63 (Chairman, 1961-63)

Kennedy, W.C., 1954-56
Kerr, Mrs. Hannah, /965-66
Lawrence, Myers G., [96/-72
Loverseed, Mrs. Betty, [969-70
Lush, Harold V., /1957-59
MacMaster, H.N., /1964-72
Mallette, Karl, /963-65
McCann, Rev. T.J., /966-72
McConkey, E. Bruce, /969-72
McMullen, W.F., 1966
Millar, Dr. O.B., 1970-72
Miller, T.D., 196/-63
Murphy, J.F., 1954-56
O’Hara, Dr. P.J., 1954-69
Parker, Mrs. W.A., 197]-72
Reavie, A.M., /1954-56
Regan, John B., /963-72 (Chairman, 1972)
Ridley, John B., Founding Chairman, [954-57
(Chairman, St. Mary's Hospital, 1952-54)
Ridout, Ernest, /1956-58
Rippingille, E.V. Jr., 1964-71
Roberson, R.S., /1954-53
Rodomar, O.W., 1954
Ruddell, Mrs. E.A., 1967-72
Sharpe, R.J., 1957-59
Shipley, Howard V., /957-63
Snaith, C.L., 196/-66
Stacey, Mrs. H.O., 1964-65
Sutton, R.E., /1954-63
Turner, Wm. 1., /196/-65
Waldock, E., 1956
Walsh, Dr. E.D., 1970-71
Warkentin, Dr. D.E., /970-71
Wells, Thomas L., /963-66
Whitten, Roy H.T., 196/-71
Wright, Harry E., [1954-67

Presidents of Women’s Auxiliary

1957-59 — Mrs. F.J. Beech (Dorothy)
1959-61 — Mrs. H.W. Brown (Alma)
1961-62 — Mrs. N.S. Mclntyre (Kay)

1965-67 — Mrs. G.R. Kerr (Hannah)
1967-68 — Mrs. H. Sher (Iris)
1968-70 — Mrs. A.F. Loverseed (Betty)

1962-63 — Mrs. H.F. Evans (Hazel)
1963-65 — Mrs. H.O. Stacey (Jerri)

1970-72 — Mrs. W.A. Parker (Barbara)
1972-74 — Mrs. W.F. Koerber (Marjorie)

Original employees continuously on staff from 1956 to Dec. 31, 1973:

Mr. Russell Avery, Director of Personnel Services

Mr. John Vlaar, Baker

Miss Jean Black, Registered Nursing Assistant

Miss Reta Carson, Supervisor of Obstetrical Unit

Miss Mabel Coughlin, Director of Dietetics

Mrs. Viola Cowan, Switchboard Operator and Receptionist
Mrs. Betty Cozens, Medical Records Clerk

Mrs. Marion Goodchild, Registered Technologist, Laboratory
Dr. Ritchie J. MacKay, Chief Pathologist

Mr. Murray Springthorpe, Plant Superintendent

Mrs. Mary B. Walsh, Registered Nursing Assistant
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SCARBOROUGH GENERAL HOSPITAL 1956 to 1970

e

POWER PLANT
&
MAINTENANCE

SHOPS
1956

1956 — 183 BEDS

1960 — 340 BEDS

1968 — 640 BEDS

1970 — EMERGENCY ENTRANCE
& AMBULANCE GARAGE ADDITION [0
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Growth of the great community facility started by the Sisters goes on, as indicated by
this new expansion which will provide a further 168 beds when completed in 1974.
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